## UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, DC 20549

## **FORM 10-Q**

(Mark One)

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2025

OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 333-283752

# WINCHESTER BANCORP, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

Maryland (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 661 Main Street Winchester, Massachusetts (Address of principal executive offices) 33-3361275 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

> 01890 (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (781) 729-2130

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

	Trading	
Title of each class	Symbol(s)	Name of each exchange on which registered
N/A	N/A	N/A

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes  $\boxtimes$  No  $\square$ 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (\$232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files). Yes  $\boxtimes$  No  $\square$ 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," "smaller reporting company," and "emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer		Accelerated filer	
Non-accelerated filer	$\boxtimes$	Smaller reporting company	$\boxtimes$
Emerging growth company			

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes 🗆 No 🛛

As of May 12, 2025, the registrant had 9,295,376 shares of common stock outstanding.

### **Table of Contents**

		Page
PART I.	FINANCIAL INFORMATION	3
Item 1.	Financial Statements (Unaudited)	3
	Consolidated Balance Sheets	3
	Consolidated Statements of Operations	4
	Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income	5
	Consolidated Statements of Changes in Surplus	6
	Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows	8
	Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements	9
Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	24
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	38
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	38
PART II.	OTHER INFORMATION	39
Item 1.	Legal Proceedings	39
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	39
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	39
Item 3.	Defaults Upon Senior Securities	39
Item 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures	39
Item 5.	Other Information	39
Item 6.	Exhibits	40
<u>Signatures</u>		41

### **Explanatory Note**

Winchester Bancorp, Inc., a Maryland corporation (the "Company"), was formed on December 6, 2024 to serve as the bank holding company for Winchester Savings Bank and Subsidiaries (the "Bank") as part of the Bank's mutual holding company reorganization. As of March 31, 2025 the reorganization had not been completed, and, as of that date, the Registrant had no assets or liabilities, and had not conducted any business other than that of an organizational nature. Accordingly, financial and other information of the Bank is included in this Quarterly Report.

### PART I-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

### Item 1. Financial Statements.

### Winchester Savings Bank and Subsidiaries

### **Consolidated Balance Sheets (unaudited)**

### March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024

		March 31, 2025		June 30, 2024
Assets		(In thou	sands)	
Cash and due from banks	\$	7.833	\$	3,183
Interest-bearing deposits	φ	58,784	Ģ	40,931
Total cash and cash equivalents		66,617		44,114
Securities available for sale, at fair value		34,986		31,090
Marketable equity securities, at fair value		2,263		2.112
Securities held to maturity, at amortized cost		51,778		55,548
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost		6,100		5,763
Loans, net of allowance for credit losses of \$3,600 at March 31, 2025		•,-••		-,
and \$3,451 at June 30, 2024		727,728		681,951
Bank owned life insurance		10,810		10,459
Premises and equipment, net		6,612		6,981
Accrued interest receivable		3,061		3,165
Other assets		13,137		11,785
	\$	923,092	\$	852,968
Liabilities and Surplus				
Non-interest-bearing deposits	\$	86,435	\$	52,442
Interest-bearing deposits		616,646		582,951
Federal Home Loan Bank advances		131,000		129,469
Mortgagors' escrow accounts		1,867		1,642
Net deferred tax liability		235		70
Accrued expenses and other liabilities		5,995		6,106
Total liabilities		842,178		772,680
Commitments and contingencies				
Surplus		82,140		82,094
Accumulated other comprehensive loss		(1,226)		(1,806)
Total surplus		80,914		80,288
	\$	923,092	\$	852,968

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

### **Consolidated Statements of Operations (unaudited)**

		Three mor Marc	nths endec ch 31,	I		Nine mon Marc		led
		2025		2024		2025		2024
Interest and dividend income:				(In tho	isands)			
Interest and dividend medine.	\$	9,479	\$	7,886	\$	27,739	\$	22,420
Interest and recs on rouns	ψ	744	ψ	660	Ψ	2,266	Ψ	1.619
Interest and dividends on securities		390		496		1.347		1,015
Total interest and dividend income	<u> </u>	10,613	. <u></u>	9.042		31,352		25,335
Interest expense:		10,015		9,012		51,552		23,335
Interest on deposits		4,681		4,311		14,633		11,362
Interest on Federal Home Loan Bank advances		1,559		1,264		4,547		3,169
Total interest expense		6,240		5,575		19,180		14,531
Net interest income		4,373		3,467		12,172		10,804
Provision (benefit) for credit losses		(21)		100		1,379		239
Net interest income, after provision (benefit) for credit losses		4,394		3,367		10,793		10,565
Other income:		1,371		5,507		10,755		10,505
Customer service fees		167		161		535		502
Income on bank owned life insurance		115		65		351		197
Loss on available for sale securities, net								(33)
Gain (loss) on marketable equity securities, net		(71)		219		152		292
Gain on sale of fixed assets		(, 1)						314
Miscellaneous		88		33		150		96
Total other income		299		478		1,188		1,368
Operating expenses:						-,		
Salaries and employee benefits		2,531		2,134		6,967		6,701
Occupancy and equipment, net		409		395		1.199		1,130
Data processing		356		305		1,008		827
Deposit insurance		210		128		638		319
Marketing and advertising		120		96		312		280
Other general and administrative		695		614		1,901		1,917
Total operating expenses		4,321		3,672		12,025		11,174
Income (loss) before income taxes		372		173		(44)		759
Provision (benefit) for income taxes		67		(19)		(90)		81
Net income	\$	305	\$	192	\$	46	\$	678

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

### Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (unaudited)

		\$ 305 \$ 19 367 		1	Nine mon Marc			
	2	025		2024	2025			2024
				(In thou	isands)			
Net income	\$	305	\$	192	\$	46	\$	678
Other comprehensive income (loss):							_	
Securities available for sale:								
Unrealized holding gains (losses)		367		(9)		749		715
Reclassification adjustment for losses realized in income		—		—		—		33
Net unrealized gains (losses)		367		(9)		749	_	748
Tax effect		(83)		2		(169)		(168)
Net-of-tax amount		284		(7)		580		580
Comprehensive income	\$	589	\$	185	\$	626	\$	1,258

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

### Consolidated Statements of Changes in Surplus (unaudited)

### Three Months Ended March 31, 2025 and 2024

	 Surplus	Cor In	ccumulated Other mprehensive come (Loss)	 Total Surplus
Balance at December 31, 2024	\$ 81,835	\$	(1,510)	\$ 80,325
Comprehensive income	305		284	589
Balance at March 31, 2025	\$ 82,140	\$	(1,226)	 80,914
Balance at December 31, 2023	\$ 81,794	\$	(2,671)	\$ 79,123
Comprehensive income (loss)	 192		(7)	 185
Balance at March 31, 2024	\$ 81,986	\$	(2,678)	\$ 79,308

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

### **Consolidated Statements of Changes in Surplus (unaudited)**

### Nine Months Ended March 31, 2025 and 2024

Balance at June 30, 2024 Comprehensive income Balance at March 31, 2025 Balance at June 30, 2023 Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (1) Comprehensive income Balance at March 31, 2024	Surplus			ccumulated Other mprehensive come (Loss) 1 thousands)	 Total Surplus
Balance at June 30, 2024	\$	82,094	\$	(1,806)	\$ 80,288
Comprehensive income		46		580	626
Balance at March 31, 2025	\$	82,140	\$	(1,226)	\$ 80,914
Balance at June 30, 2023	\$	80,304	\$	(3,258)	\$ 77,046
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (1)		1,004		—	1,004
Comprehensive income		678		580	1,258
Balance at March 31, 2024	\$	81,986	\$	(2,678)	\$ 79,308

(1) Represents adjustment needed to reflect cumulative impact on surplus pursuant to the Bank's adoption of Accounting Standard Update 2016-13. The adjustment presented includes a \$2.8 million (\$2.0 million, net of tax) reduction in the allowance for credit losses related to loans, and a \$1.4 million (\$1.0 million, net of tax) increase in the reserve for off-balance sheet credit exposures resulting from the Bank's adoption of the standard.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

### **Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited)**

### For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2025 and 2024

		Nine months o March 31	
		2025	2024
		(In thousan	ds)
Cash flows from operating activities: Net income	\$	46 \$	678
	\$	40 \$	0/8
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: Provision for credit losses		1,379	239
Net amortization of securities		273	
		627	316
Depreciation and amortization Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance		(351)	540
			(197)
Accretion of net deferred loan origination costs		(41)	(34)
Losses on debt securities, net		(152)	33
Gain on marketable equity securities, net		(152)	(292)
Net change in: Accrued interest receivable		104	((28)
Other assets			(638)
		(1,204)	(2,165)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities		(110)	1,967
Net cash provided by operating activities		571	447
Cash flows from investing activities:			
Activity in securities available for sale:			
Maturities, calls and prepayments		14,153	3,197
Sales		—	2,072
Purchases		(17,493)	(9,000)
Activity in securities held to maturity:			
Maturities, calls and prepayments		12,688	5,661
Purchases		(9,000)	(13,479)
Purchase of bank-owned life insurance		_	(4,000)
Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank stock		(338)	(1,168)
Loan originations, net of principal payments		(47,262)	(56,800)
Purchase of premises and equipment, net		(259)	(1,600)
Net cash used by investing activities		(47,511)	(75,117)
Cash flows from financing activities:			
Net increase in deposits		67,689	30,459
Net change in short-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances		(15,470)	47,775
Proceeds from long-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances		30,000	99,000
Repayment of long-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances		(13,000)	(113,424)
Net increase in mortgagors' escrow accounts		224	220
Net cash provided by financing activities		69,443	64,030
Net change in cash and cash equivalents		22,503	(10,640)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year		44,114	52,178
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year	8	66,617 \$	41,538
Supplemental cash flow information:	÷	φ	.1,550
Interest paid on deposits	\$	14.647 \$	11.276
Interest paid on Federal Home Loan Bank advances	φ	4,847	2.909
Income taxes paid, net of refunds		4,847	475
income taxes paid, net of refunds		232	4/5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

#### Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements

#### 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Winchester Savings Bank (the "Bank") have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) for interim information. Accordingly, they do not include all the information and footnote disclosures required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all normal recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the financial condition and result of operations for the periods have been included.

For additional information and disclosures required under U.S. GAAP, refer to the Bank's Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassified to conform with current period's presentation.

#### Basis of consolidation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Bank and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Sachem Holdings, Inc., Aberjona Holdings, Inc., 1871 Company, LLC, and Wedgemere Holdings, LLC. Sachem Holdings, Inc. and Aberjona Holdings, Inc. function as Massachusetts security corporations. 1871 Company, LLC's principal activity is holding of bank premises. Wedgemere Holdings, LLC's principal activity is the holding of properties acquired in settlement of loans. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 611 Main Street Corporation, a previously inactive subsidiary, has been dissolved.

#### Business

The Bank provides a variety of financial services to individuals and small businesses through its offices in Winchester, Woburn, Danvers and Arlington, Massachusetts. Its primary deposit products are checking, savings and term certificate accounts and its primary lending products are residential and commercial real estate loans.

#### Reorganization

On December 4, 2024, The Board of Trustees of the Bank adopted a plan of reorganization from a Mutual Savings Bank to a Mutual Holding Company and Plan of Stock Issuance (the "Plan"). The Plan is subject to the approval of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the Massachusetts Division of Banks, and the reorganization must also be approved by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. Pursuant to the Plan, the Bank proposes to reorganize into a mutual holding company form of ownership. The Bank will become a stock savings bank and issue all its outstanding stock to a new holding company, which will be named Winchester Bancorp, Inc. Pursuant to the Plan, the new holding company will sell stock to the public, with the total offering value and number of shares of common stock based on an independent appraiser's valuation. Winchester Bancorp, Inc. will be organized as a corporation under the laws of the State of Maryland and will offer 45% of its common stock to be outstanding to the Bank's eligible depositors, the Bank's employee stock ownership plan being formed in connection with the organization, a charitable foundation and certain other persons. Winchester Bancorp, MHC will be organized as a mutual holding company under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and will own 55% of the common stock of Winchester Bancorp, Inc. to be outstanding upon completion of the reorganization and stock issuance.

The cost of reorganization and stock issuance will be deferred and deducted from the sales proceeds of the offering. As of March 31, 2025, \$1.4 million of reorganization costs had been incurred.

On April 30, 2025, the Bank completed the transactions contemplated by the Plan, including the sale of 3,997,012 shares of common stock in the stock offering at a per share price of \$10.00 per share. As a result of the reorganization, the Company has 9,295,376 shares of common stock outstanding.

### Use of estimates

In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for credit losses and post-retirement benefit liabilities.

#### Fair value hierarchy

The Bank groups its assets and liabilities measured at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value.

Level 1 – Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets.

Level 2 – Valuation is based on observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets.

Level 3 – Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets. Level 3 assets include financial instruments whose value is determined using unobservable inputs to pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation.

Defined benefit pension plan investments in hedge funds are measured using the net asset value per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient and have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy.

### Accrued Interest Receivable

The Bank elected not to measure an allowance for credit losses for accrued interest receivable and instead elected to reverse interest income on loans or securities that are placed on nonaccrual status, which is generally when the instrument is 90 days past due, or earlier if the Bank believes the collection of interest is doubtful. The Bank has concluded that this policy results in the timely reversal of uncollectible interest.

#### Allowance for Credit Losses-Loans

Prior to July 1, 2023, the allowance for loan losses was based on an incurred loss methodology and represented the estimate of the risk of loss inherent in the loan portfolio as of the balance sheet date. Effective July 1, 2023, the allowance for credit losses is based on the Current Expected Credit Loss (CECL) methodology.

The allowance for credit losses is a valuation account that is deducted from the loans' amortized cost basis to present the net amount expected to be collected on the loans. Such allowance is based on losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (contractual term). The allowance for credit losses on loans is established through a provision for credit losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for credit losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

#### Collectively evaluated loans

The Bank measures the allowance for credit losses using the Scaled CECL Allowance for Losses Estimator ("SCALE") method, which is a simple, spreadsheet-based method developed by the Federal Reserve to assist community banks in calculating a CECL compliant allowance for credit losses using proxy expected lifetime loss rates. The SCALE tool is a template designed for smaller community banks with total assets of less than \$1 billion. It uses publicly available data from Schedule RI-C of the Call Report to derive the initial proxy lifetime loss rates. Management used judgment to further adjust

the proxy expected lifetime loss rates with qualitative factors to reflect the facts and circumstances of the Bank's internal loss history and credit risk factors for each loan segment. The allowance for credit losses is measured on a collective (pool) basis when similar characteristics exist. The Bank segmented its loan portfolio to correspond to call report classification to make peer data more useful.

The qualitative factors are determined based on the various risk characteristics of each loan segment. Risk characteristics relevant to each portfolio segment are as follows:

Residential real estate – The Bank generally does not originate loans with a loan-to-value ratio greater than 80% at origination and does not generally grant loans that would be classified as subprime upon origination. The Bank generally has 1<sup>st</sup> and 2<sup>nd</sup> liens on property securing equity lines of credit. All loans in this segment are collateralized by owner-occupied residential real estate and repayment is dependent on the credit quality of the individual borrower. The overall health of the economy, including unemployment rates and housing prices, will have an effect on the credit quality in this segment.

Commercial real estate – Loans in this segment are primarily income-producing properties. The underlying cash flows generated by the properties can be adversely impacted by a downturn in the economy as evidenced by increased vacancy rates, which in turn, could have an effect on the credit quality in this segment. Management obtains rent rolls annually and continually monitors the cash flows of these loans.

Commercial – Loans in this segment are made to businesses and are generally secured by assets of the business. Repayment is expected from the cash flows of the business. A weakened economy, and resultant decreased consumer spending, could have an effect on the credit quality in this segment.

Construction – Loans in this segment include both owner-occupied and speculative real estate development loans for which payment is derived from sale of the property. Credit risk is affected by cost overruns, time to sell at an adequate price, and market conditions.

Consumer – Loans in this segment include loans secured by personal property or savings and unsecured loans. Repayment is dependent on the credit quality of the individual borrower.

### Individually Evaluated Loans

Loans that do not share risk characteristics are evaluated on an individual loan basis. Loans evaluated individually are not also included in the collective evaluation. For loans that are collateral dependent, that is, when the borrower is experiencing financial difficulty and repayment is expected to be provided substantially through the operation or sale of the collateral, expected credit losses are based on fair value of the collateral at the reporting date, adjusted for selling costs as appropriate.

### Unallocated component

An unallocated component may be maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management's estimate of probable losses. The unallocated portion of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating collectively and individually evaluated loans in the portfolio.

#### Allowance for Credit Losses- Off-Balance Sheet Credit Exposures

The Bank has off-balance sheet financial instruments, which include commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and commercial letters of credit. The Bank estimates expected credit losses over the contractual period in which the Bank is exposed to risk via a contractual obligation to extend credit, unless that obligation is unconditionally cancellable by the Bank.

The Bank's allowance for credit losses on off-balance sheet credit exposures is recognized as a liability in accrued expenses and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets, with adjustments to the reserve recognized in the provision for credit losses in the consolidated statements of operations. The estimate of credit loss incorporates assumptions for both the likelihood and amount of funding over the estimated life of the commitments, for the risk of loss, and current conditions and expectations. Management periodically reviews and updates the assumptions.

### **Recent accounting pronouncements**

Management has not identified any Accounting Standards Updates that have been issued but are not yet effective and could have a significant impact on the Bank's financial reporting or disclosure requirements.

### 2. RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM BANKS

From time to time, the Bank is required to maintain average balances on hand or with the Federal Reserve Bank. There were no required reserve balances at March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024.

### 3. SECURITIES

The amortized cost and fair value of available for sale and held to maturity securities, at March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024, with gross unrealized gains and losses, follows:

				March 3	31, 202	25	
	A	Amortized Unrea		Gross realized Gains	Gross Unrealized Losses		 Fair Value
				(In tho	usands	5)	
Securities Available for Sale							
U.S. Government agency and U.S. Government- sponsored enterprise obligations	\$	5,000	\$	_	\$	(29)	\$ 4,971
U.S. Government agency and U.S. Government- sponsored enterprise residential mortgage-							
backed securities		12,511		33		(42)	12,502
Corporate bonds and obligations		18,044		_		(1,453)	16,591
Municipal bonds		924		_		(2)	922
Total securities available for sale	\$	36,479	\$	33	\$	(1,526)	\$ 34,986
<u>Securities Held to Maturity</u>							
U.S. Government and U.S. Government-sponsored							
enterprise obligations	\$	28,720	\$	_	\$	(1,179)	\$ 27,541
U.S. Government agency and U.S. Government- sponsored enterprise residential mortgage-							
backed securities		11,766		82		(247)	11,601
Corporate bonds and obligations		9,336				(1,044)	8,292
Municipal bonds		1,956		274		(105)	2,125
Total securities held to maturity	\$	51,778	\$	356	\$	(2,575)	\$ 49,559

				June 3	), 202	24											
	A	Amortized Cost						Amortized Unrealiz Cost Gains				Unrealized		Unrealized Gains		Gross Unrealized Losses	 Fair Value
Securities Available for Sale				(III thou	154110	(5)											
U.S. Government agency and U.S. Government- sponsored enterprise obligations	\$	10,333	\$	_	\$	(19)	\$ 10,314										
U.S. Government agency and U.S. Government- sponsored enterprise residential mortgage-																	
backed securities		2,894				(75)	2,819										
Corporate bonds and obligations		18,211		—		(2,123)	16,088										
Municipal bonds		1,894		—		(25)	1,869										
Total securities available for sale	\$	33,332	\$	_	\$	(2,242)	\$ 31,090										
<u>Securities Held to Maturity</u>							 										
U.S. Government and U.S. Government-sponsored																	
enterprise obligations	\$	32,220	\$		\$	(1,806)	\$ 30,414										
U.S. Government agency and U.S. Government- sponsored enterprise residential mortgage-																	
backed securities		11,396		44		(321)	11,119										
Corporate bonds and obligations		9,406		_		(1,405)	8,001										
Municipal bonds		2,526		251		(156)	2,621										
Total securities held to maturity	\$	55,548	\$	295	\$	(3,688)	\$ 52,155										

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities by contractual maturity at March 31, 2025 are shown as follows. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because the issuers, in certain instances, have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

		Availabl	e for S	ale		Held to 1	Maturity		
	4	Amortized Cost		Fair Value (In tho	Amortized Cost thousands)			Fair Value	
Within 1 year	\$	924	\$	922	\$	498	\$	498	
Over 1 year through 5 years		13,884		12,931		27,370		25,920	
Over 5 years through 10 years		6,160		5,655		4,147		3,608	
Over 10 years		3,000		2,976		7,997		7,932	
		23,968		22,484		40,012		37,958	
U.S. Government agency and U.S. Government- sponsored enterprise residential mortgage-									
backed securities		12,511		12,502		11,766		11,601	
Total securities	\$	36,479	\$	34,986	\$	51,778	\$	49,559	

There were no realized losses on securities for the three or nine months ended March 31, 2025, and for the three months ended March 31, 2024. During the nine months ended March 31, 2024, the Bank realized \$33,000 of losses on sales of securities available for sale.

### Allowance for Credit Losses-Securities

Available for sale (AFS) and held to maturity (HTM) securities, which are issued by the United States Treasury or are guaranteed by government agencies do not currently have an allowance for credit loss as the Bank determined these securities are either backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government and/or there is an unconditional commitment to make interest payments and to return the principal investment in full to investors when a debt security reaches maturity. In assessing the Bank's investments in government-sponsored and U.S. government guaranteed mortgage-backed securities and government-sponsored enterprise obligations, the contractual cash flows of these investments are guaranteed by the respective government-sponsored enterprise. Accordingly, it is expected that the securities would not be settled at a price less than the par value of the Bank's investments. The Bank will evaluate this position no less than annually, however, certain items which may cause the Bank to change this methodology include legislative changes that reduce or eliminate the U.S. government's implicit guarantee on such securities. Any expected credit losses would be presented as an allowance for credit

loss. For corporate and municipal bonds, whether they are AFS or HTM, a probability of default and a loss given default analysis is performed to determine whether an allowance for credit losses is needed. There was no allowance for credit losses established on AFS or HTM securities during the nine months ended March 31, 2025.

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position, follows:

	L	ess Than Tv	velve I	Months		Over Twe	ve Mo	onths
	Unre	oss alized sses		Fair Value		Gross Unrealized Losses		Fair Value
<u>March 31, 2025</u>				(In tho	usanc	15)		
Securities Available for Sale								
U.S. Government and U.S. Government-								
sponsored enterprise obligations	\$	29	\$	4,971	\$		\$	
U.S. Government agency and U.S. Government- sponsored enterprise residential mortgage-								
backed securities		40		9,322		2		105
Corporate bonds and obligations		—				1,453		16,591
Municipal bonds						2		922
Total securities available for sale	\$	69	\$	14,293	\$	1,457	\$	17,618
<u>Securities Held to Maturity</u>								
U.S. Government and U.S. Government-sponsored enterprise obligations	\$	27	\$	4,970	\$	1,152	\$	22,073
U.S. Government agency and U.S. Government- sponsored enterprise residential mortgage-								
backed securities		13		1,911		234		3,244
Corporate bonds and obligations						1,044		8,292
Municipal bonds				_		105		1,126
Total securities held to maturity	\$	40	\$	6,881	\$	2,535	\$	34,735

	Le	ss Than Tv	velve N	Months		Over Twe	lve Mo	onths
	Gr Unre: Los	alized		Fair Value		Gross Unrealized Losses		Fair Value
June 30, 2024				(In tho	usand	s)		
Securities Available for Sale								
U.S. Government and U.S. Government-								
sponsored enterprise obligations	\$	15	\$	8,985	\$	4	\$	1,329
U.S. Government agency and U.S. Government- sponsored enterprise residential mortgage-								
backed securities		_				75		2,785
Corporate bonds and obligations						2,123		16,089
Municipal bonds				_		25		1,869
Total securities available for sale	\$	15	\$	8,985	\$	2,227	\$	22,072
<u>Securities Held to Maturity</u>								
U.S. Government and U.S. Government-sponsored enterprise obligations	\$	18	\$	6,986	\$	1,788	\$	21,436
U.S. Government agency and U.S. Government- sponsored enterprise residential mortgage-	Ų	10	Ψ	0,900	Ψ	1,700	Ψ	21,150
backed securities		_		_		321		4,251
Corporate bonds and obligations				_		1,405		8,001
Municipal bonds						156		1,621
Total securities held to maturity	\$	18	\$	6,986	\$	3,670	\$	35,309

The Bank monitors the credit quality of securities through the use of credit ratings. Management evaluates debt securities for impairment at least quarterly, and more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation.

At March 31, 2025, 139 debt securities have unrealized losses with aggregate depreciation of 5.28% of the Bank's amortized cost basis. The decline in market value is attributable to changes in interest rates and not to credit quality, and the Bank currently does not believe it is probable that it will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the investments. Therefore, it is expected that the securities would not be settled at a price less than the par value of the investment. Because the Bank does not intend to sell the securities and it is not "more likely than not" that the Bank will be required to sell the securities before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, the Bank does not consider these securities to be impaired at March 31, 2025.

### Accrued Interest Receivable

There were no write offs during the nine months ended March 31, 2025 and the year ended June 30, 2024. The balance of accrued interest receivable on investments was \$695,000 and \$813,000 at March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024, respectively.

#### Marketable equity securities

At March 31, 2025, marketable equity securities include common stock securities in industry sectors related to technology, consumer staples, financial services, aerospace and other. Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) recognized in earnings during the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 were (\$71,000) and \$219,000, respectively. Net realized and unrealized gains recognized in earnings during the nine months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 were \$152,000 and \$292,000, respectively. As of March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024, the net unrealized gain on marketable equity securities was \$1.2 million and \$1.1 million, respectively.

#### 4. LOANS

A summary of the balances of loans follows:

	1	March 31, 2025 (In tho	usand	June 30, 2024 s)
Mortgage loans:				
Residential real estate	\$	345,824	\$	338,903
Commercial real estate		101,499		85,402
Multi-family		149,036		124,843
Construction		102,369		101,413
Home equity loans and lines-of-credit		26,323		26,697
Total mortgage loans		725,051		677,258
Commercial loans		4,743		6,591
Consumer loans		352		520
Total loans		730,146		684,369
Allowance for credit losses		(3,600)		(3,451)
Net deferred loan origination costs		1,182		1,033
Loans, net	\$	727,728	\$	681,951

The Bank has sold mortgage loans in the secondary mortgage market and has retained the servicing responsibility and receives fees for the services provided. Total loans serviced for others at March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024 amounted to \$22.8 million and \$24.8 million, respectively, and are not included on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Activity in the allowance for credit losses, by segment, for the three months ended March 31, 2025 follows:

	dential Estate	nercial Estate	Iulti- mily	Con	struction_	E	ome quity usands)	Com	mercial	Cor	isumer	Una	llocated	 <u>Fotal</u>
Allowance for credit losses-loans							ĺ.							
Balance at December 31, 2024	\$ 1,365	\$ 512	\$ 731	\$	806	s	102	s	76	\$	5	s	38	\$ 3,635
Provision (benefit) for credit losses	54	35	71		(113)		6		3		(3)		(38)	15
Loans charged-off	_	_	_		_		_		(50)		_		_	(50)
Recoveries	 	 	 _		_		_							 
Balance at March 31, 2025	\$ 1,419	\$ 547	\$ 802	\$	693	\$	108	\$	29	\$	2	\$	_	\$ 3,600
	dential   Estate	nercial Estate	fulti- mily	Con	struction	E	ome quity usands)	Com	mercial	Сог	isumer	Una	llocated	 <u>Fotal</u>
Allowance for off balance sheet credit exposures														
Balance at December 31, 2024	\$ 38	\$ 6	\$ 10	\$	1,005	\$	3	\$	15	\$		\$		\$ 1,077
Provision (benefit) for credit losses	 29	 38	 55		(157)		2		(3)					 (36)
Balance at March 31, 2025	\$ 67	\$ 44	\$ 65	\$	848	\$	5	\$	12	\$		\$		\$ 1,041

Activity in the allowance for credit losses for the nine months ended March 31, 2025 follows:

	idential l Estate	nercial Estate	ulti- mily	Con	struction	E	lome quity usands)	Con	nmercial	Con	sumer	Una	llocated	Total
Allowance for credit losses-loans														
Balance at June 30, 2024	\$ 1,292	\$ 485	\$ 710	\$	778	\$	102	s	39	\$	9	s	36	\$ 3,451
Provision (benefit) for credit losses	127	147	92		(85)		6		1,282		(7)		(36)	1,526
Loans charged-off	_	(85)	_		_		_		(1,330)		_		_	(1,415)
Recoveries	 _	 _	 _		_		_		38		_		_	 38
Balance at March 31, 2025	\$ 1,419	\$ 547	\$ 802	\$	693	\$	108	\$	29	\$	2	\$	_	\$ 3,600
	idential I Estate	nercial Estate	ulti- mily	Con	struction	E	lome quity ousands)	Con	nmercial	Con	sumer	Una	llocated	 <u>Total</u>
Allowance for off balance sheet credit exposures														
Balance at June 30, 2024	\$ 47	\$ 9	\$ 14	\$	937	\$	4	\$	16	\$		\$	161	\$ 1,188
Provision (benefit) for credit losses	 20	 35	 51		(89)		1		(4)				(161)	 (147)
Balance at March 31, 2025	\$ 67	\$ 44	\$ 65	\$	848	\$	5	\$	12	\$		\$		\$ 1,041

The increase in the allowance for credit losses during the nine months ended March 31, 2025 was due to overall growth in the loan portfolio and charge offs.

### The allowance for credit losses, by loan segment, at March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024 follows:

	sidential al Estate	nmercial al Estate	Multi- family	Cor	istruction	]	Home Equity housands)	Com	mercial	Con	sumer	Unall	ocated		<u> Total</u>
March 31, 2025															
Allowance for individually evaluated loans	\$ _	\$ _	\$ _	\$	_	\$	_	\$	_	\$	_	\$	_	\$	
Allowance for collectively evaluated loans	 1,419	 547	 802		693		108		29		2		_	_	3,600
Total allowance for loan losses	\$ 1,419	\$ 547	\$ 802	\$	693	\$	108	\$	29	\$	2	\$	_	\$	3,600
Individually evaluated loans	\$ 744	\$ 1,166	\$ 	\$		\$	_	\$	270	\$				\$	2,180
Collectively evaluated loans	 345,080	 100,333	 149,036		102,369		26,323		4,473		352				727,966
Total loans	\$ 345,824	\$ 101,499	\$ 149,036	\$	102,369	\$	26,323	\$	4,743	\$	352			\$	730,146
	sidential al Estate	nmercial al Estate	Multi- family	Cor	nstruction	]	Home Equity housands)	Com	mercial	Con	sumer	Unall	ocated		<u>Fotal</u>
June 30, 2024							· · · ·								
Allowance for individually evaluated loans	\$ _	\$ 85	\$ _	\$	_	\$	_	\$	_	\$	_	\$	_	\$	85
Allowance for collectively evaluated loans	 1,292	 451	 659		778		102		39		9		36		3,366

Anowance for concentrery evaluated toans	 1,272	 151	_	057	_	110	 102	 57	-		 50	 5,500
Total allowance for loan losses	\$ 1,292	\$ 536	\$	659	\$	778	\$ 102	\$ 39	\$	9	\$ 36	\$ 3,451
Individually evaluated loans	\$ _	\$ 1,251	\$	_	\$	_	\$ _	\$ _	\$	_		\$ 1,251
Collectively evaluated loans	 338,903	 84,151		124,843		101,413	 26,697	 6,591		520		 683,118
Total loans	\$ 338,903	\$ 85,402	\$	124,843	\$	101,413	\$ 26,697	\$ 6,591	\$	520		\$ 684,369

Activity in the allowance for credit losses, by segment, for the three months ended March 31, 2024 follows:

	idential Il Estate	iercial Estate	lulti- mily	Co	onstruction	1	Home Equity ousands)	Сог	nmercial	Con	sumer	Una	llocated	 Total
Allowance for credit losses-loans														
Balance at December 31, 2023	\$ 1,250	\$ 431	\$ 584	\$	545	\$	95	\$	40	\$	7	\$	123	\$ 3,075
Provision (benefit) for credit losses	27	(5)	29		4		2		1		1		41	100
Loans charged-off		_					_		_					
Recoveries	_	_	_		_		_		_		_		_	_
Balance at March 31, 2024	\$ 1,277	\$ 426	\$ 613	\$	549	\$	97	\$	41	\$	8	\$	164	\$ 3,175

	Reside Real E		nmercial l Estate	1ulti- amily	C	Construction	 Home Equity lousands)	Co	mmercial	Co	nsumer	Una	allocated	_	Total
Allowance for off balance sheet credit exposures							, i								
Balance at December 31, 2023	\$	21	\$ 12	\$ 16	\$	1,077	\$ 2	\$	61	\$		\$	_	\$	1,189
Provision for credit losses			 	 _			 		_		_				
Balance at March 31, 2024	\$	21	\$ 12	\$ 16	\$	1,077	\$ 2	\$	61	\$	_	\$		\$	1,189

Activity in the allowance for credit losses for the nine months ended March 31, 2024 follows:

		dential Estate		mercial   Estate	Mul	ti-family_	Constr			ome uity ands)	Com	mercial	Cons	sumer	Unall	ocated		Total
Allowance for credit losses-loans																		
Balance at June 30, 2023	\$	932	\$	1,641	s	2,225	s	507	\$	88	\$	116	s	10	\$	_	\$	5,519
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle Provision (benefit) for credit		293		(1,240)		(1,683)		(124)		29		(83)		(2)		_		(2,810)
losses		52		25		71		166		(20)		8		_		164		466
Loans charged-off		_		_		_		_		_		_		_				_
Recoveries				_		_		_						_				_
Balance at March 31, 2024	\$	1,277	\$	426	\$	613	\$	549	\$	97	\$	41	\$	8	\$	164	\$	3,175
		dential Estate		mercial   Estate	Mul	ti-family	Constr			ome uity ands)	Com	mercial	Cons	sumer	Unall	ocated		Total
Allowance for off balance sheet					Mul	ti-family	Constr		Eq	uity	Com	mercial	Cons	sumer	Unall	ocated		<u>Fotal</u>
<u>Allowance for off balance sheet</u> <u>credit exposures</u> Balance at June 30, 2023					<u>Mul</u> S	ti-family	<u>Constr</u> §		Eq	uity	<u>Com</u> §	mercial	<u>Cons</u>	sumer	Unall S	ocated	s	<u>Fotal</u>
credit exposures	Real	Estate	Rea	Estate		<u> </u>		(1	<u>Eq</u> n thous	uity ands)		mercial — 63		<u>sumer</u>		<u>ocated</u>		<b>Total</b>
<u>credit exposures</u> Balance at June 30, 2023 Cumulative effect of change	Real	Estate	Rea	Estate		_		(l) 	<u>Eq</u> n thous	uity ands) 		_		<u>sumer</u>		<u>ocated</u>		_

The decrease in the allowance for credit losses on loans during the nine months ended March 31, 2024 was primarily due to the adoption of ASU 201-13. The increase in the allowance for credit losses on off balance sheet credit exposures was primarily due to the adoption of ASU 2016-13.

The following is a summary of past due and non-accrual loans at March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024:

		9 Days at Due		-90 Days ast Due	90 Pa	ater than ) Days 1st Due 1ousands)	<u> </u>	Total ast Due		ans on -accrual
March 31, 2025										
Residential real estate	\$	884	\$	—	\$		\$	884	\$	441
Commercial real estate				—		1,166		1,166		1,166
Commercial		—				270		270		270
Total	\$	884	\$		\$	1,436	\$	2,320	\$	1,877
		9 Days at Due		-90 Days ast Due	9 Pa	ater than ) Days 1st Due 1ousands)	P	Total ast Due		ans on -accrual
June 30, 2024	Pas				9 Pa	) Days ist Due	<u> </u>			
June 30, 2024 Residential real estate					9 Pa	) Days ist Due	P \$			
	Pas	t Due	<u> </u>	ast Due	90 Pa (In th	) Days ist Due			Non	<u>-accrual</u>

There are no loans greater than 90 days past due and still accruing at March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024. The balance of accrued interest receivable on loans was \$2.4 million at each of March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024. There was \$30,000 of accrued interest reversed on non-accrual loans during the nine months ended March 31, 2025. There was no accrued interest reversed during the nine months ended March 31, 2024.

No additional funds are committed to be advanced in connection with the individually evaluated loans. There were no loan modifications to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty during the nine months ended March 31, 2025 and year ended June 30, 2024.

### Credit quality information

The Bank has a ten-grade internal loan rating system for commercial real estate, multi-family, commercial, and construction loans as follows:

- Loans rated in the first six grades 1-6 are considered "pass" rated loans with low to average risk.
- Loans rated 7 are considered "watch." These loans are starting to show signs of potential weakness and are being closely monitored by management.
- Loans rated 8 are considered "substandard." Generally, a loan is considered substandard if it is inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligors and/or the collateral pledged. There is a distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain some loss if the weakness is not corrected.
- Loans rated 9 are considered "doubtful." Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of existing facts, conditions and values, highly questionable and improbable.
- Loans rated 10 are considered uncollectible ("loss") and of such little value that their continuance as loans is not warranted.

On a periodic basis, management formally reviews the ratings on all commercial real estate, multi-family, commercial, and construction loans. Annually, the Bank engages an independent third party to review a significant portion of the loans within these segments. Management uses the results of these reviews as part of its internal review process.

Credit quality for residential real estate, home equity loans and lines-of-credit, and consumer loans is determined by monitoring delinquency reports and loan payment history, and through on-going communication with customers.

The following table presents the Bank's risk rated loans by year of origination and gross write-offs for the nine months ended March 31, 2025:

							As of	March 31, 20	25					
					I			ost basis by o		ation year				
Rating:		2025		2024		2023		2022		2021		Prior		Total
Commercial							(In	thousands)						
Real Estate:														
1-6 (Pass)	\$	16,246	\$	7,564	\$	25,432	\$	16,185	\$	700	\$	33,516	\$	99,643
7 (Watch)	φ	10,240	Ф	7,504	φ	23,432	Φ	10,105	φ	/00	φ	238	φ	238
8 (Substandard)												452		452
9 (Doubtful)										_		1,166		1,166
10 (Loss)												1,100		1,100
Total	\$	16,246	\$	7,564	\$	25,432	\$	16,185	\$	700	\$	35,372	\$	101,499
	\$	10,210		7,501	_	23,132	_	10,105	\$	700	\$	85	\$	85
Current-period gross write-offs	\$		\$		\$		\$		Ф		\$	85	\$	83
Multi-family:	¢	10.070	¢	14.001	¢	56 540	¢	04.017	¢	00 (51	¢	20 (04	¢	140.000
1-6 (Pass)	\$	12,063	\$	14,881	\$	56,740	\$	24,017	\$	20,651	\$	20,684	\$	149,036
7 (Watch)		—		_		—		—		_		—		_
8 (Substandard)		—										—		—
9 (Doubtful)		—		_		—		—		_		—		_
10 (Loss)	-		-		-		-		-		-		-	
Total	\$	12,063	\$	14,881	\$	56,740	\$	24,017	\$	20,651	\$	20,684	\$	149,036
Current-period gross write-offs	\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$	
Commercial:														
1-6 (Pass)	\$	200	\$	193	\$	2,339	\$	145	\$	—	\$	1,596	\$	4,473
7 (Watch)		_		_				—		_		—		—
8 (Substandard)		—		270				—		—		—		270
9 (Doubtful)		_		_				_		_		_		_
10 (Loss)														
Total	\$ \$	200	\$	463	\$	2,339	\$	145	\$		\$	1,596	\$	4,743
Current-period gross write-offs	\$		\$	1,330	\$		\$		\$		\$		\$	1,330
Construction:														
1-6 (Pass)	\$	38,769	\$	25,506	\$	29,892	\$		\$		\$	168	\$	94,335
7 (Watch)		_		_		8,034		—		_		—		8,034
8 (Substandard)		—										—		—
9 (Doubtful)		_		_		_		_		_		_		_
10 (Loss)					_								_	
Total	\$	38,769	\$	25,506	\$	37,926	\$		\$		\$	168	\$	102,369
Current-period gross write-offs	\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$	

The following table presents the Bank's risk rated loans by year of origination and gross write-offs for June 30, 2024:

							As of	June 30, 20	24					
	Loans amortized cost basis by origination year													
Rating:		2024		2023		2022	(7	2021		2020		Prior		Total
Commercial							(In	thousands)						
Real Estate:														
1-6 (Pass)	\$	7,480	\$	30,120	\$	11,792	\$	711	\$	3,425	\$	29,907	\$	83,435
7 (Watch)	Ψ		Ψ		Ψ		Ψ		Ψ		Ψ	242	Ψ	242
8 (Substandard)												1,725		1,725
9 (Doubtful)		_		_		_		_		_				
10 (Loss)														
Total	\$	7,480	\$	30,120	\$	11,792	\$	711	\$	3,425	\$	31,874	\$	85,402
Current-period gross write-offs	\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$	
Multi-family:			_		_								-	
1-6 (Pass)	\$	8,910	\$	41,407	\$	27,365	\$	21,963	\$	4,821	\$	20,377	\$	124,843
7 (Watch)														
8 (Substandard)														
9 (Doubtful)		_		_		_		_		_		—		_
10 (Loss)														
Total	\$	8,910	\$	41,407	\$	27,365	\$	21,963	\$	4,821	\$	20,377	\$	124,843
Current-period gross write-offs	\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$	_	\$	
Commercial:														
1-6 (Pass)	\$	1,456	\$	1,648	\$	1,184	\$		\$	104	\$	2,199	\$	6,591
7 (Watch)												—		—
8 (Substandard)		—		—		—		—		—		—		—
9 (Doubtful)		_		_		_		_				_		
10 (Loss)														
Total	\$	1,456	\$	1,648	\$	1,184	\$		\$	104	\$	2,199	\$	6,591
Current-period gross write-offs	\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$	
Construction:														
1-6 (Pass)	\$	28,373	\$	66,420	\$	6,380	\$		\$		\$	240	\$	101,413
7 (Watch)		—		_		_		—		—		—		
8 (Substandard)		—		—		—		—		—		—		—
9 (Doubtful)		—		—		—		—		—		—		—
10 (Loss)														
Total	\$	28,373	\$	66,420	\$	6,380	\$		\$		\$	240	\$	101,413
Current-period gross write-offs	\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$	

### 5. MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

Effective January 1, 2020, the Bank elected to comply with the community bank leverage ratio framework issued by the federal banking agencies. The framework provides for a simple measure of capital adequacy, calculated as Tier 1 capital divided by average total consolidated assets, which is consistent with how the Bank currently calculates its leverage ratio. Under this framework, a bank that maintains a community bank leverage ratio of greater than 9% is considered to have satisfied the risk-based and leverage capital ratios. As of March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024, the Bank met the minimum requirement with a community bank leverage ratio of 9.06% and 9.92%, respectively. Management believes that the Bank's leverage capital ratio will remain above the minimum required community bank leverage ratio.

### 6. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

### Determination of fair value

The Bank uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is

best determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in some instances, quoted market prices may not be available. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques, including collateral value. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the assets.

#### Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below. There are no liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis at March 31, 2025 or June 30, 2024.

		Marc	h 31, 2025	
	Level 1	Level 2 (In th	Level 3	Total Fair Value
Debt securities available for sale	\$	— \$ 34,986	\$ _	\$ 34,986
Marketable equity securities	2,5	263 —		2,263
Total	\$ 2,	263 \$ 34,986	\$	\$ 37,249
		June	30, 2024	
	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total Fair Value
Debt securities available for sale	\$	— \$ 31,090		\$ 31,090
Marketable equity securities	2,	112 —		2,112
Total	\$ 2,	\$ 31,090	<u>\$                                    </u>	\$ 33,202

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Bank in estimating fair value:

<u>Securities available for sale and marketable equity securities</u> – All fair value measurements are obtained from a third-party pricing service and are not adjusted by management. The marketable equity securities measured at fair value in Level 1 are based on quoted market prices in an active exchange market. Debt securities available for sale are measured at fair value in Level 2 based on pricing models that consider standard input factors such as observable market data, benchmark yields, interest rate volatilities, broker/dealer quotes, credit spreads and new issue data.

#### Assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis

The Bank may also be required, from time to time, to measure certain other assets and liabilities at fair value on a non-recurring basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. These adjustments to fair value usually result from application of lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write-downs of individual assets. There were no assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis at March 31, 2025 or June 30, 2024.

### Summary of Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair values, and related carrying amounts, of the Bank's financial instruments are as follows. Certain financial instruments and all nonfinancial instruments are exempt from disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented herein do not represent the underlying fair value of the Bank.

	(	Carrying			]	Fair Value				
		Amount		Level 1		Level 2		Level 3		
				(In Tho	usands	)				
<u>March 31, 2025</u>										
Financial assets:	<b>.</b>		<b>.</b>	· · · · -	<i><b>•</b></i>		¢			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	66,617	\$	66,617	\$		\$	—		
Securities available for sale and marketable equity		25.240		2 2 4 2		24.000				
securities		37,249		2,263		34,986				
Securities held to maturity		51,778				49,559		—		
Federal Home Loan Bank stock		6,100						6,100		
Loans, net		727,728						696,075		
Accrued interest receivable		3,061				3,061		—		
Financial liabilities:										
Deposits		703,081						662,085		
Federal Home Loan Bank advances		131,000				131,218		—		
Mortgagors' escrow accounts		1,867				1,867				
Accrued interest payable		465				465				
June 30, 2024										
Financial assets:										
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	44,114	\$	44,114	\$		\$	—		
Securities available for sale and marketable equity										
securities		33,202		2,112		31,090		—		
Securities held to maturity		55,548				52,155		—		
Federal Home Loan Bank stock		5,763						5,763		
Loans, net		681,951						639,804		
Accrued interest receivable		3,165				3,165				
Financial liabilities:										
Deposits		635,393						599,463		
Federal Home Loan Bank advances		129,469				129,155				
Mortgagors' escrow accounts		1,642				1,642				
Accrued interest payable		927				927				

#### Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. General

Management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations at March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024 and for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 is intended to assist in understanding the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. The information contained in this section should be read in conjunction with the unaudited financial statements and the notes thereto appearing in Part I, Item 1, of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

### **Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements**

This report contains forward-looking statements, which can be identified by the use of words such as "anticipate," "assume," "believe," "contemplate," "continue," "estimate," "expect," "indicate," "intend," "may," "plan," "project," "seek," "should," "target," "will," "would," and words of similar meaning. These forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:

- statements of our goals, intentions and expectations;
- statements regarding our business plans, prospects, growth and operating strategies;
- statements regarding the quality of our loan and investment portfolios; and
- estimates of our risks and future costs and benefits.

These forward-looking statements are based on current beliefs and expectations of our management and are inherently subject to significant business, economic and competitive uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond our control. In addition, these forward-looking statements are subject to assumptions with respect to future business strategies and decisions that are subject to change.

The following factors, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from the anticipated results or other expectations expressed in the forward-looking statements:

- general economic conditions, including any recessionary conditions and/or increases in unemployment, either nationally or in our market areas, that are worse than expected;
- changes in the level and direction of loan delinquencies and write-offs and changes in estimates of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses;
- our ability to access cost-effective funding;
- fluctuations in real estate values and in the conditions;
- demand for loans, deposits and non-banking services in our market area;
- our ability to implement and change our business strategies;
- competition among depository and other financial institutions, including with respect to ability to charge overdraft fees;
- inflation and changes in the interest rate environment that reduce our margins and yields, the fair value of financial instruments or our level of loan originations, or increase the level of defaults, losses and prepayments on loans we have made and will make;
- adverse changes in the securities or secondary mortgage markets;
- changes in laws or government regulations or policies affecting financial institutions and/or their holding companies, including changes in regulatory fees, capital requirements and insurance premiums;
- monetary and fiscal policies of the U.S. Government, including policies of the U.S. Treasury and the Federal Reserve Board;
- changes in the quality or composition of our loan or investment portfolios;
- technological changes that may be more difficult or expensive than expected;

- the inability of third-party providers to perform as expected;
- a failure or breach of our operational or information security systems or infrastructure, including cyberattacks;
- our ability to manage market risk, credit risk and operational risk;
- our ability to enter new markets successfully and capitalize on growth opportunities;
- our ability to successfully integrate into our operations any assets, liabilities, customers, systems and management personnel we may acquire and our ability to realize related revenue synergies and cost savings within expected time frames, and any goodwill charges related thereto;
- changes in consumer spending, borrowing and savings habits;
- changes in accounting policies and practices, as may be adopted by the bank regulatory agencies, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board;
- changes in accounting and/or tax estimates;
- our ability to retain key employees;
- the effects of any national or global conflict, war or act of terrorism;
- the ability of the U.S. Government to remain open, function properly and manage federal debt limits;
- the potential effects of tariffs;
- the impact of a pandemic on our operations and financial results and those of our customers;
- our compensation expense associated with equity allocated or awarded to our employees; and
- changes in the financial condition, results of operations or future prospects of issuers of securities that we own.

### **Critical Accounting Policies**

The discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations are based on our financial statements, which are prepared in conformity with GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions affecting the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of income and expenses. We consider the accounting policies discussed below to be critical accounting policies. The estimates and assumptions that we use are based on historical experience and various other factors and are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions, resulting in a change that could have a material impact on the carrying value of our assets and liabilities and our results of operations.

The JOBS Act contains provisions that, among other things, reduce certain reporting requirements for qualifying public companies. As an "emerging growth company," we may delay adoption of new or revised accounting pronouncements applicable to public companies until such pronouncements are made applicable to private companies. We intend to take advantage of the benefits of this extended transition period. Accordingly, our financial statements may not be comparable to companies that comply with such new or revised accounting standards.

The following represents our critical accounting policy.

Allowance for Credit Losses on Loans. The allowance for credit losses on loans is a valuation account that is deducted from the loans' amortized cost basis to present the net amount expected to be collected on the loans. Such allowance is based on losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (contractual term). The allowance for credit losses on loans is established through a provision for credit losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

We measure the allowance for credit losses on loans using the SCALE method, which is a simple, spreadsheet-based method developed by the Federal Reserve Board to assist community banks in calculating a CECL compliant allowance for credit losses using proxy expected lifetime loss rates. The SCALE tool is a template designed for smaller community banks with total assets of less than \$1 billion. It uses publicly available data to derive the initial proxy lifetime loss rates. Management uses judgment to further adjust the proxy expected lifetime loss rates with qualitative factors to reflect the facts

and circumstances of our internal loss history and credit risk factors for each loan segment. The allowance for credit losses on loans is measured on a collective (pool) basis when similar characteristics exist. We segment our loan portfolio to correspond to call report classification to make peer data more useful.

The allowance for credit losses on loans is evaluated on a regular basis by management. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available. For example, an increase of 25 basis points as to our lifetime loss rate for qualitative factors for all loan categories at March 31, 2025 would have increased our allowance for credit losses on loans at that date to \$5.4 million from \$3.6 million.

Loans that do not share risk characteristics are evaluated on an individual loan basis. Loans evaluated individually are not also included in the collective evaluation. For loans that are collateral dependent, that is, when the borrower is experiencing financial difficulty and repayment is expected to be provided substantially through the operation or sale of the collateral, expected credit losses are based on fair value of the collateral at the reporting date, adjusted for selling costs as appropriate.

An unallocated component may be maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management's estimate of probable losses. The unallocated portion of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating collectively and individually evaluated loans in the portfolio.

Although we believe that we use the best information available to establish the allowance for credit losses on loans, future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if economic conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the evaluation. In addition, the Massachusetts Commissioner of Banks and the FDIC, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review our allowance for credit losses on loans, and as a result of such reviews, we may have to adjust our allowance for credit losses on loans. A large loss could deplete the allowance and require increased provisions to replenish the allowance, which would adversely affect earnings.

For more information on our critical accounting policies, see Note 1 of the notes to our consolidated financial statements.

### Comparison of Financial Condition at March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024

*Total Assets*. Total assets increased \$70.1 million, or 8.2%, to \$923.1 million at March 31, 2025, from \$853.0 million at June 30, 2024. The increase was primarily due to increases in loans and cash and cash equivalents.

*Cash and Cash Equivalents*. Cash and cash equivalents increased \$22.5 million, or 51.0%, to \$66.6 million at March 31, 2025 from \$44.1 million at June 30, 2024. The increase represents subscription funds from prospective investors in our initial public offering prior to the closing of the offering.

*Investment Securities.* Investment securities, comprised of both available for sale and held to maturity securities, aggregated \$86.8 million at March 31, 2025 compared to \$86.6 million at June 30, 2024, as we used excess cash to fund loan growth instead of investing in securities.

*Gross Loans*. Loans increased \$45.8 million, or 6.7%, to \$730.1 million at March 31, 2025 compared to \$684.4 million at June 30, 2024. The primary increases were in multi-family real estate loans (\$24.1 million, or 19.4%), commercial real estate loans (\$16.1 million, or 18.8%), one- to four-family residential real estate loans (\$6.9 million, or 2.0%), and construction loans (\$1.0 million, or 0.9%). We continued our focus on originating construction and multi-family real estate loans at a higher point in the market interest rate cycle. Our strategy is to continue to grow our loan portfolio, with a focus on commercial real estate, multi-family residential real estate and construction loans, while continuing to originate single-family residential real estate loans to support local homebuyers. The recent increase in one- to four-family residential real estate loans was due to our establishing new broker relationships and our recent efforts to balance our concentration of commercial real estate loans, particularly with respect to our level of regulatory capital. The allowance for credit losses on loans was \$3.6 million at March 31, 2025 and \$3.5 million at June 30, 2024, and represented 0.49% and 0.50% of total loans at March 31, 2025 and \$1.2 million at June 30, 2024,. The benefit for off balance sheet commitments related to lower balances of loan commitments as the commitments were converted to loans.

Total nonaccrual loans were \$1.9 million at March 31, 2025, compared to \$1.4 million at June 30, 2024. Total loans past due 30 days or greater were \$2.3 million at March 31, 2025 compared to \$1.3 million at June 30, 2024. As a percentage



of nonperforming loans, the allowance for credit losses on loans was 191.77% at March 31, 2025 compared to 245.44% at June 30, 2024.

*Deposits*. Deposits increased \$67.7 million, or 10.7%, to \$703.1 million at March 31, 2025 from \$635.4 million at June 30, 2024. The increase was due primarily to an increase in money market accounts, which increased \$33.6 million, or 39.3%, to \$119.1 million at March 31, 2025 from \$85.5 million at June 30, 2024, as customers continued to hold deposit products with higher interest rates. The increase in deposits was also due to a \$22.2 million, or 18.6% in NOW and demand deposits. NOW and demand deposits included \$34.9 million of subscription funds from prospective investors in our initial public offering prior to the closing of the offering. Certificates of deposits increased \$18.9 million, or 7.2%, to \$281.1 million at March 31, 2025 from \$262.2 million at June 30, 2024. This increase was comprised of an increase of \$18.7 million, or 11.6%, in certificates of deposit in amounts of less than \$250,000, and an increase of \$272,000, or 0.3%, in certificates of deposit in amounts of \$250,000 or greater (the limit for federal deposit insurance). All of our deposits are fully insured under the DIF.

*Borrowings*. Borrowings, which consisted solely of Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston advances, increased \$1.5 million, or 1.2%, to \$131.0 million at March 31, 2025, compared to \$129.5 million from June 30, 2024.

*Total Surplus*. Total surplus increased \$626,000 and was \$80.9 million at March 31, 2025 and \$80.3 million at June 30, 2024. Total surplus increased due to a \$580,000 decrease in accumulated other comprehensive loss to \$1.2 million at March 31, 2025, and by a net income of \$46,000 for the nine months ended March 31, 2025.

#### Comparison of Operating Results for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2025 and 2024

*General.* We recorded net income of \$305,000 and \$192,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The increase in net income was due to an increase in interest and dividend income and a decrease in provision for credit loss expense, partially offset by increases in interest expense, and operating expense, and a decrease in other income.

*Interest and Dividend Income*. Interest and dividend income increased \$1.6 million, or 17.4%, to \$10.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025, from \$9.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024. Interest and fees on loans, which is our primary source of interest income, increased \$1.6 million, or 20.2%, to \$9.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025.

The average balance of loans increased by \$79.8 million, or 12.2%, to \$735.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025, over the average balance for the three months ended March 31, 2024, while the average yield on loans increased by 35 basis points to 5.16% for the three months ended March 31, 2025, from 4.81% for the three months ended March 31, 2024. The increase in the average yield was due to increases in market interest rates as well as in improvement in the composition of our loan portfolio to include a higher percentage of higher yielding construction and commercial real estate loans, as well as multi-family residential real estate loans. The increase in average balance was due to our continuing to pursue new commercial relationships.

*Interest Expense*. Total interest expense increased \$664,000, or 11.9%, to \$6.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025, compared to \$5.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024. Interest expense on deposits increased \$370,000, or 8.6%, to \$4.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025, from \$4.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024. Our average balance of interest-bearing deposits increased \$59.5 million, or 10.75%, to \$612.6 million, while our average cost of deposits decreased six basis points to 3.06% for the three months ended March 31, 2025, from 3.12% for the three months ended March 31, 2024.

Interest expense on Federal Home Loan Bank advances increased \$295,000, or 23.4%, to \$1.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025, from \$1.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024. The increase was due to increases in our average balance of Federal Home Loan Bank advances (\$33.1 million, or 29.7%) while our average cost of borrowings decreased 22 basis points to 4.32% for the three months ended March 31, 2024. As described above, we increased Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings in recent periods primarily to fund loan growth.

*Net Interest Income*. Net interest income was \$4.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025, compared to \$3.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, as our interest income increased faster than our interest expense. Our interest rate spread increased to 1.61% for the three months ended March 31, 2025 from 1.31% for the three months

ended March 31, 2024. Our net interest margin increased to 2.02% for the three months ended March 31, 2025 from 1.79% for the three months ended March 31, 2024

*Provision for Credit Losses.* Based on an analysis of the factors described in "Critical Accounting Policies—Allowance for Credit Losses," we recorded a benefit for credit losses of \$21,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2025, compared to a provision of \$100,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2024. The provision for credit losses on loans for the three months ended March 31, 2025 was \$15,000 primarily due to an increase in loan balances, while there was a benefit for credit losses on off balance sheet commitments of \$36,000 for the same period, due to lower off balance sheet commitments.

Our estimates and assumptions used in the determination of the adequacy of the allowance could be proven incorrect in the future, and the actual amount of future provisions may exceed the amount of past provisions. Any such increase in future provisions that may be required may adversely impact our financial condition and results of operations.

Other Income. Other income information is as follows.

	Three Mon Marc	ded		Chang	ge
	 2025	 2024		Amount	Percent
		(Dollars in	thousa	nds)	
Customer service fees	\$ 167	\$ 161	\$	6	3.8%
Bank owned life insurance	115	65		50	76.8%
Gain (loss) on marketable equity securities, net	(71)	219		(290)	(132.3)%
Miscellaneous	88	33		55	165.7%
Total other income	\$ 299	\$ 478	\$	(179)	(37.4)%

The decrease in gain on marketable equity securities, net, was due to more favorable market conditions in the prior period. The increase in income on bank owned life insurance was due to the purchase of \$4.0 million of additional policies during the 2025 fiscal year.

Operating Expense. Operating expense information is as follows.

	Three Mor Mar	iths En ch 31,	ded	Change			
	 2025		2024 (Dollars in		<u>Amount</u> ands)	Percent	
Salaries and employee benefits	\$ 2,531	\$	2,134	\$	397	18.6%	
Occupancy and equipment, net	409		395		14	3.5%	
Data processing	356		305		51	16.6%	
Deposit insurance	210		128		82	63.8%	
Marketing and advertising	120		96		24	25.0%	
Other	695		614		81	13.1%	
Total operating expense	\$ 4,321	\$	3,672	\$	649	17.7%	

The increase in salaries and employee benefits was due to the addition of key finance staff, and higher expenses related to our health plan, while the increase in deposit insurance expense was due to an increase in FDIC insurance rates and our higher deposit levels.

*Income Taxes.* Income tax expense increased to \$67,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2025, compared to a benefit of \$19,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2024. The effective tax rates were 18.0% and (11.0%) for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, as we had lower levels of taxable income during the 2024 period.

#### Average Balances and Yields

The following tables set forth average balance sheets, average yields and costs, and certain other information for the periods indicated. No tax-equivalent yield adjustments have been made, as the effects would be immaterial. All average balances are daily average balances, and the average balance of loans includes non-accrual loans. The yields set forth below

include the effect of deferred fees/costs, discounts, and premiums that are amortized or accreted to interest income. Deferred loan fees for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 were not material.

				For the Three Mon	hs En	ded March 31,			
		2	2025						
	Average utstanding Balance	_1	nterest	Average <u>Yield/Rate (1)</u> (Dollars in	thous	Average Outstanding Balance ands)		Interest	Average Yield/Rate (1)
Interest-earning assets:						,			
Loans	\$ 735,256	\$	9,479	5.16%	5 \$	655,431	\$	7,886	4.81%
Securities available for sale	34,436		323	3.75%	)	29,589		257	3.47%
Securities held to maturity	52,161		421	3.23%	)	50,935		403	3.17%
Interest-bearing deposits and other	 42,373		390	3.69%	) )	38,433		496	5.16%
Total interest-earning assets	864,226		10,613	4.91%	)	774,388		9,042	4.67%
Noninterest-earning assets	40,668					29,991			
Allowance for credit losses on loans	 (3,673)					(3,077)			
Total assets	\$ 901,221				\$	801,302			
Interest-bearing liabilities:									
NOW and demand deposits	\$ 54,291		4	0.03%	5 \$	70,415		155	0.88%
Savings accounts	163,830		910	2.22%	)	167,892		1,007	2.40%
Money market accounts	108,775		845	3.11%	)	70,420		565	3.21%
Certificates of deposit	 285,692		2,922	4.09%		244,402		2,584	4.23%
Total interest-bearing deposits	612,588		4,681	3.06%	)	553,129		4,311	3.12%
Borrowings	 144,429		1,559	4.32%		111,325		1,264	4.54%
Total interest-bearing liabilities	757,017		6,240	3.30%	)	664,454		5,575	3.36%
Other noninterest-bearing liabilities	63,356					57,437			
Total liabilities	820,373					721,891			
Surplus	 80,848					79,411			
Total liabilities and surplus	\$ 901,221				\$	801,302			
Net interest income		\$	4,373				\$	3,467	
Net interest rate spread (2)				1.61%	)				1.31%
Net interest-earning assets (3)	\$ 107,209				\$	109,934			
Net interest margin (4)	 			2.02%	, ,				1.79%
Average interest-earning assets to interest-bearing liabilities	114.16%					116.55%	)		

(1) Annualized.

(2) Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the weighted average yield on interest-earning assets and the weighted average rate of interestbearing liabilities.

(3) Net interest-earning assets represent total interest-earning assets less total interest-bearing liabilities.

(4) Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.

#### **Rate/Volume Analysis**

The following table presents the effects of changing rates and volumes on our net interest income for the periods indicated. The rate column shows the effects attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume). The volume column shows the effects attributable to changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by prior rate). The total column represents the sum of the prior columns. For purposes of this table, changes attributable to both rate and volume, which cannot be segregated, have been allocated proportionately based on the changes due to rate and the changes due to volume. There were no out-of-period items or adjustments required to be excluded from the table below.

			Three Months Ended arch 31, 2025 vs. 2024	
	 Increase (Dec	rease)		Total Increase
	 Volume		Rate (In thousands)	 (Decrease)
Interest-earning assets:			(In thousands)	
Loans	\$ 1,004	\$	589	\$ 1,593
Securities available for sale	44		22	66
Securities held to maturity	10		8	18
Interest-bearing deposits and other	59		(164)	(105)
Total interest-earning assets	1,117		455	1,572
Interest-bearing liabilities:				
NOW and demand deposits	(29)		(122)	(151)
Savings accounts	(24)		(73)	(97)
Money market accounts	297		(17)	280
Certificates of deposit	419		(81)	338
Borrowings	 354		(58)	 296
Total interest-bearing liabilities	1,017		(351)	666
Change in net interest income	\$ 100	\$	806	\$ 906

#### Comparison of Operating Results for the Nine Months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024

*General*. We recorded a net income of \$46,000 and \$678,000 for the nine months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024. The decrease in net income was due primarily to increases in interest expense and the provision for credit losses, partially offset by an increase in interest and dividend income and a decrease in income tax expense.

*Interest and Dividend Income*. Interest and dividend income increased \$6.0 million, or 23.8%, to \$31.4 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2025, from \$25.3 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2024. Interest and fees on loans, which is our primary source of interest income, increased \$5.3 million, or 23.7%, to \$27.7 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2025, from \$22.4 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2024.

The average balance of loans increased by \$80.3 million, or 12.6%, to \$717.4 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2025, over the average balance for the nine months ended March 31, 2024, while the average yield on loans increased by 47 basis points to 5.16% for the nine months ended March 31, 2025, from 4.69% for the nine months ended March 31, 2024. The increase in the average yield was due to increases in market interest rates as well as changes in the composition of our loan portfolio to include a higher percentage of higher yielding construction and commercial real estate loans, as well as multi-family residential real estate loans. The increase in average balance was due to our continuing to pursue new commercial relationships.

*Interest Expense*. Total interest expense increased \$4.6 million, or 32.0%, to \$19.2 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2025, compared to \$14.5 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2024. Interest expense on deposits increased \$3.3 million, or 28.8%, to \$14.6 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2025, from \$11.4 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2024. Our average balance of interest-bearing deposits increased \$61.0 million, or 11.3%, to \$600.6 million, while our average cost of deposits increased 44 basis points to 3.25% for the nine months ended March 31, 2025, from 2.81% for the nine months ended March 31, 2024. The increase in the average cost of deposits was due to increases in market interest rates as well as a higher percentage of our deposits consisting of certificates of deposit, which bear higher rates than other deposit categories.

Interest expense on Federal Home Loan Bank advances increased \$1.4 million, or 43.5%, to \$4.5 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2025, from \$3.2 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2024. The increase was due to increases in both our average balance of Federal Home Loan Bank advances (\$40.3 million, or 41.9%) and our average cost of borrowings (five basis points to 4.44% for the nine months ended March 31, 2025, from 4.39% for the nine months ended March 31, 2024). We increased Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings in recent periods primarily to fund loan growth. The increase in the average cost of borrowings was due to increases in market interest rates between the periods.

*Net Interest Income.* Net interest income was \$12.1 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2025, compared to \$10.8 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2024, as our interest income increased faster than our interest expense. Our interest rate spread increased to 1.50% for the nine months ended March 31, 2025 from 1.49% for the nine months ended March 31, 2024, while our net interest margin decreased to 1.93% for the nine months ended March 31, 2025 from 1.94% for the nine months ended March 31, 2024. The interest rate spread and net interest margin were both adversely impacted by the higher market interest rates for most of fiscal 2025.

*Provision for Credit Losses*. Based on an analysis of the factors described in "Critical Accounting Policies—Allowance for Credit Losses," we recorded a provision for credit losses of \$1.4 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2025, compared to a provision of \$239,000 for the nine months ended March 31, 2024. The provision for credit losses on loans was \$1.5 million while a benefit of \$147,000 was recorded for off balance sheet commitments. The increase in the provision for credit losses on loans for the nine months ended March 31, 2025 was primarily due to our charging off approximately 85% of a \$1.6 million commercial loan as of September 30, 2024 and an additional \$50,000 in the current quarter ended March 31, 2025 due to the borrower's filing for bankruptcy protection and terminating operations of the underlying business.

Our estimates and assumptions used in the determination of the adequacy of the allowance could be proven incorrect in the future, and the actual amount of future provisions may exceed the amount of past provisions. Any such increase in future provisions that may be required may adversely impact our financial condition and results of operations.

Other Income. Other income information is as follows.

	Nine Mor Mar	ths E ch 31,		Change				
	 2025		2024		Amount	Percent		
			(Dollars in	thous	ands)			
Customer service fees	\$ 535	\$	502	\$	33	6.6%		
Bank owned life insurance	351		197		154	78.4%		
Gain on marketable equity securities, net	152		292		(140)	(48.0)%		
Loss on investment securities			(33)		33	(100.0)%		
Gain on sale of fixed assets			314		(314)	(100.0)%		
Miscellaneous	150		96		54	56.3%		
Total other income	\$ 1,188	\$	1,368	\$	(180)	(13.2)%		

Gain on sale of fixed assets during the 2024 period was related to the sale of a bank branch. The decrease in gain on marketable equity securities, net, was due to unfavorable market conditions during the 2025 period, while the increase in income on bank owned life insurance was due to the purchase of \$4.0 million of additional policies during the 2025 fiscal year.

Operating Expense. Operating expense information is as follows.

	Nine Mon Mare	ths E ch 31,	nded	Change			
	2025		2024		Amount	Percent	
			(Dollars in	thous	ands)		
Salaries and employee benefits	\$ 6,967	\$	6,701	\$	266	4.0%	
Occupancy and equipment, net	1,199		1,130		69	6.1%	
Data processing	1,008		827		181	21.8%	
Deposit insurance	638		319		319	99.9%	
Marketing and advertising	312		280		32	11.4%	
Other	1,901		1,917		(16)	(0.8)%	
Total operating expense	\$ 12,025	\$	11,174	\$	851	7.6%	

The increase in deposit insurance expense was due to an increase in FDIC insurance rates and our higher deposit levels. The increase in salaries and employee benefits was due to the addition of key staff in finance and other areas, while the increase in data processing expense was due to our implementing a new program for electronic communications and online account opening.

*Income Taxes.* Income taxes decreased by \$171,000 to a benefit of \$90,000 for the nine months ended March 31, 2025, compared to a provision of \$81,000 for the nine months ended March 31, 2024. The decrease in the income tax provision was due primarily to a net loss for the 2025 period.

#### **Average Balances and Yields**

The following tables set forth average balance sheets, average yields and costs, and certain other information for the periods indicated. No tax-equivalent yield adjustments have been made, as the effects would be immaterial. All average balances are daily average balances, and the average balance of loans includes non-accrual loans. The yields set forth below

include the effect of deferred fees/costs, discounts, and premiums that are amortized or accreted to interest income. Deferred loan fees for the nine months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 were not material.

					For the Nine Month	s Enc	ded March 31,			
			2	2025			,		2024	
	(	Average Dutstanding Balance	_1	nterest	Average <u>Yield/Rate (1)</u> (Dollars in		Average Outstanding Balance ands)	]	Interest	Average Yield/Rate (1)
Interest-earning assets:					,		,			
Loans	\$	717,442	\$	27,739	5.16%	\$	637,156	\$	22,420	4.69%
Securities available for sale		32,152		911	3.78%		27,056		620	3.06%
Securities held to maturity		54,127		1,355	3.34%		47,322		999	2.81%
Interest-bearing deposits and other		37,980		1,347	4.73%		32,351		1,296	5.34%
Total interest-earning assets		841,701		31,352	4.97%		743,885		25,335	4.54%
Noninterest-earning assets		38,819					23,371			
Allowance for credit losses on loans		(3,522)					(3,851)			
Total assets	\$	876,998				\$	763,405			
Interest-bearing liabilities:										
NOW and demand deposits	\$	55,696		130	0.31%	\$	72,737		442	0.81%
Savings accounts		164,342		2,952	2.39%		169,414		2,926	2.30%
Money market accounts		99,026		2,486	3.35%		60,035		1,101	2.44%
Certificates of deposit		281,572		9,065	4.29%		237,441		6,893	3.87%
Total interest-bearing deposits		600,636		14,633	3.25%		539,627		11,362	2.81%
Borrowings		136,624		4,547	4.44%		96,280		3,169	4.39%
Total interest-bearing liabilities		737,260		19,180	3.47%		635,907		14,531	3.05%
Other noninterest-bearing liabilities		59,314					50,448			
Total liabilities		796,574					686,355			
Surplus		80,424					77,050			
Total liabilities and surplus	\$	876,998				\$	763,405			
Net interest income			\$	12,172				\$	10,804	
Net interest rate spread (2)					1.50%					1.49%
Net interest-earning assets (3)	\$	104,441				\$	107,978			
Net interest margin (4)					1.93%					1.94%
Average interest-earning assets to interest-bearing liabilities		114.17%					116.98%			

(1) Annualized.

(2) Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the weighted average yield on interest-earning assets and the weighted average rate of interestbearing liabilities.

(3) Net interest-earning assets represent total interest-earning assets less total interest-bearing liabilities.

(4) Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.

#### **Rate/Volume Analysis**

The following table presents the effects of changing rates and volumes on our net interest income for the periods indicated. The rate column shows the effects attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume). The volume column shows the effects attributable to changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by prior rate). The total column represents the sum of the prior columns. For purposes of this table, changes attributable to both rate and volume, which cannot be segregated, have been allocated proportionately based on the changes due to rate and the changes due to volume. There were no out-of-period items or adjustments required to be excluded from the table below.

			ine Months Ended rch 31, 2025 vs. 2024	
	 Increase (Dec	rease) I		Total Increase
	 Volume		Rate (In thousands)	 (Decrease)
Interest-earning assets:			(	
Loans	\$ 2,981	\$	2,338	\$ 5,319
Securities available for sale	129		162	291
Securities held to maturity	155		201	356
Interest-bearing deposits and other	150		(98)	52
Total interest-earning assets	3,415		2,603	6,018
Interest-bearing liabilities:		_		
NOW and demand deposits	(86)		(226)	(312)
Savings accounts	(79)		105	26
Money market accounts	883		502	1,385
Certificates of deposit	1,371		802	2,173
Borrowings	 1,328		50	 1,378
Total interest-bearing liabilities	3,417		1,233	4,650
Change in net interest income	\$ (2)	\$	1,370	\$ 1,368

#### **Management of Market Risk**

*General*. The majority of our assets and liabilities are monetary in nature. Consequently, our most significant form of market risk is interest rate risk. Our assets, consisting primarily of mortgage loans, have longer maturities than our liabilities, consisting primarily of deposits. As a result, a principal part of our business strategy is to manage the impact of changes in market interest rates on net interest income and capital. We have an Asset/Liability Committee that is responsible for evaluating the interest rate risk inherent in our assets and liabilities, for determining the level of risk that is appropriate, given our business strategy, operating environment, capital, liquidity and performance objectives, and for managing this risk consistent with the guidelines approved by the board of trustees. The Committee establishes and monitors the volume, maturities, pricing and mix of assets and funding sources with the objective of managing assets and funding sources to provide results that are consistent with liquidity, growth, risk limits and profitability goals.

As part of our ongoing asset-liability management, we use the following strategies to manage our interest rate risk:

- emphasizing the marketing of our non-interest-bearing demand, money market, savings and demand accounts;
- investing in short- to medium-term repricing and/or maturing investment securities whenever the market allows;
- maintaining capital levels that exceed those required for well-capitalized status under federal banking regulations;
- maintaining prudent levels of liquidity;
- · managing our utilization of wholesale funding with borrowings and brokered deposits; and
- continuing to diversify our loan portfolio by adding more commercial-related loans and consumer loans, which typically have shorter maturities.

We do not engage in hedging activities, such as engaging in futures, options or interest rate swap transactions, nor invest in high-risk mortgage derivatives, such as collateralized mortgage obligation residual interests, real estate mortgage investment conduit residual interests or stripped mortgage-backed securities.

*Net Interest Income.* We analyze our sensitivity to changes in interest rates through a net interest income model. Net interest income is the difference between the interest income we earn on our interest-earning assets, such as loans and securities, and the interest we pay on our interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings. We estimate what our net interest income would be for a 12-month period. We then calculate what the net interest income would be for the same period under the assumptions that the United States Treasury yield curve increases or decreases instantaneously by up to 300 basis points, with changes in interest rates representing immediate and permanent, parallel shifts in the yield curve. A basis point equals one-hundredth of one percent, and 100 basis points equals one percent. An increase in interest rates from 2% to 3% would mean, for example, a 100 basis point increase in the "Change in Interest Rates" column below.

The tables below sets forth, as of March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024, the calculation of the estimated changes in our net interest income that would result from the designated instantaneous changes in the United States Treasury yield curve.

	At March 31, 2025		
Change in Interest Rates (Basis Points) (1)	Net Int Year	Year 1 Change From Level	
	(Dollars	in thousands)	
+300	\$	16,416	(23.5)%
+200		18,362	(14.5)%
+100		20,238	(5.7)%
Level		21,471	
-100		21,798	1.5%
-200		21,915	2.1%
-300		21,974	2.3%

#### (1) Assumes an instantaneous uniform change in interest rates at all maturities.

At June 30, 2024					
Change in Interest Rates (Basis Points) (1)	Net Interest Income Year 1 Forecast		Year 1 Change From Level		
	(Dollars	in thousands)			
+300	\$	10,385	(34.9)%		
+200		12,304	(22.8)%		
+100		14,189	(11.0)%		
Level		15,940			
-100		16,959	6.4%		
-200		17,367	8.9%		
-300		17,778	11.5%		

(1) Assumes an instantaneous uniform change in interest rates at all maturities.

The tables above indicate that at March 31, 2025, in the event of an instantaneous parallel 200 basis point increase in interest rates, we would have experienced a 14.5% decrease in net interest income, and in the event of an instantaneous parallel 200 basis point decrease in interest rates, we would have experienced a 2.1% increase in net interest income and at June 30, 2024, in the event of an instantaneous parallel 200 basis point increase in interest rates, we would have experienced a 22.8% decrease in net interest income, and in the event of an instantaneous parallel 200 basis point decrease in interest rates, we would have experienced a 22.8% decrease in net interest income, and in the event of an instantaneous parallel 200 basis point decrease in interest rates, we would have experienced a 8.9% increase in net interest income.

*Economic Value of Equity.* We also compute amounts by which the net present value of our assets and liabilities (economic value of equity, or "EVE") would change in the event of a range of assumed changes in market interest rates. This model uses a discounted cash flow analysis and an option-based pricing approach to measure the interest rate sensitivity of net portfolio value. The model estimates the economic value of each type of asset, liability and off-balance sheet contract under the assumptions that the United States Treasury yield curve increases or decreases instantaneously by up to 300 basis points, with changes in interest rates representing immediate and permanent, parallel shifts in the yield curve.

The tables below sets forth, as of March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024, the calculation of the estimated changes in our EVE that would result from the designated immediate changes in the United States Treasury yield curve.

				At March 31, 2025			
				Estimated Increase (I EVE	Decrease) in	EVE as a Percentage Value of Asset	
Change in Interest Rates (Basis Points)(1)		timated VE (2)		Amount	Percent	EVE Ratio (4)	Increase (Decrease) (Percent)
+300	\$	54,666	\$	(Dollars in thou (32,451)	(37.3)%	6.7%	(32.0)%
	φ	· · · ·	Ф				. ,
+200		68,155		(18,962)	(21.8)%	8.1%	(17.6)%
+100		79,156		(7,962)	(9.1)%	9.1%	(6.8)%
		87,118		—	—	9.8%	_
-100		92,557		5,440	6.2%	10.1%	3.3%
-200		88,634		1,516	1.7%	9.5%	(3.1)%
-300		86,338		(780)	(0.9)%	9.1%	(7.5)%

(1) Assumes an immediate uniform change in interest rates at all maturities.

(2) EVE is the discounted present value of expected cash flows from assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet contracts.

(3) Present value of assets represents the discounted present value of incoming cash flows on interest-earning assets.

(4) EVE Ratio represents EVE divided by the present value of assets.

			At June 30, 2024			
		Estimated Increase (Decrease) in EVE			EVE as a Percentage of Present Value of Assets (3)	
Change in Interest Rates (Basis Points) (1)	Estimated. EVE (2)		Amount	Percent	EVE Ratio (4)	Increase (Decrease) (Percent)
			(Dollars in thousa			
+300	5 30,105	\$	(39,142)	(56.5)%	4.2%	(52.2)%
+200	46,018		(23,229)	(33.5)%	6.1%	(29.4)%
+100	59,554		(9,693)	(14.0)%	7.7%	(11.5)%
	69,248			—	8.7%	—
-100	77,981		8,763	12.6%	9.5%	9.2%
-200	75,905		6,657	9.6%	9.0%	4.1%
-300	75,835		6,587	9.5%	8.8%	1.8%

(1) Assumes an immediate uniform change in interest rates at all maturities.

(2) EVE is the discounted present value of expected cash flows from assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet contracts.

(3) Present value of assets represents the discounted present value of incoming cash flows on interest-earning assets.

(4) EVE Ratio represents EVE divided by the present value of assets.

The tables above indicate that at March 31, 2025, in the event of an instantaneous parallel 200 basis point increase in interest rates, we would have experienced a 21.8% decrease in EVE, and in the event of an instantaneous parallel 200 basis point decrease in interest rates, we would have experienced a 1.7% increase in EVE, and at June 30, 2024, in the event of an instantaneous parallel 200 basis point increase in interest rates, we would have experienced a 33.5% decrease in EVE, and in

the event of an instantaneous parallel 200 basis point decrease in interest rates, we would have experienced a 9.6% increase in EVE.

At March 31, 2025, all estimated changes described above with respect to net interest income and EVE with respect to potential increases in market interest rates were not in compliance with the current policy limits established by the board of trustees. We have determined that selling assets to comply with our internal policies would result in a significant loss that would deplete capital and, as a result, restrict future growth, while providing limited benefit during a period of declining market interest rates, as has begun in the latter half of 2024.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodologies used in the above interest rate risk measurements. Modeling changes require making certain assumptions that may or may not reflect the manner in which actual yields and costs respond to changes in market interest rates. In this regard, the changes in net interest income and net economic value tables presented assume that the composition of our interest-sensitive assets and liabilities existing at the beginning of a period remains constant over the period being measured and assumes that a particular change in interest rates is reflected uniformly across the yield curve regardless of the duration or repricing of specific assets and liabilities. Accordingly, although the tables provide an indication of our interest rate risk exposure at a particular point in time, such measurements are not intended to and do not provide a precise forecast of the effect of changes in market interest rates, and actual results may differ. Furthermore, although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to repricing, they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates. Additionally, certain assets, such as adjustable-rate loans, have features that restrict changes in interest rates both on a short-term basis and over the life of the asset. In the event of changes in interest rates, prepayment and early withdrawal levels would likely deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the tables.

Interest rate risk calculations also may not reflect the fair values of financial instruments. For example, decreases in market interest rates can increase the fair values of our loans, deposits and borrowings.

### Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is our ability to meet current and future financial obligations that arise in the ordinary course of business. Liquidity is primarily needed to meet the borrowing and deposit withdrawal requirements of our customers and to fund current and planned expenditures. Our primary sources of funds are deposits, principal and interest payments on loans and securities and proceeds from maturities and calls of securities. We also have the ability to borrow from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston. At March 31, 2025, we had \$131.0 million outstanding in advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston. At March 31, 2025, we had \$125.0 million in additional Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston advances. At March 31, 2025, we had a \$5.3 million line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston, which was not drawn at March 31, 2025. Additionally, at March 31, 2025, we had a \$11.1 million secured line of credit through the Federal Reserve Borrower in Custody program. At that date, there were no amounts outstanding.

While maturities and scheduled amortization of loans and securities are predictable sources of funds, deposit flows and loan prepayments are greatly influenced by general interest rates, economic conditions, and competition. Our most liquid assets are cash and cash equivalents. The levels of these assets depend on our operating, financing, lending, and investing activities during any given period.

We test the level of our liquidity monthly and quarterly. Our monthly liquidity test is the ratio of basic surplus (deficit) divided by total assets, with basic surplus/deficit consisting of liquid assets (cash and due from banks, federal funds sold, securities available for sale, loans held for sale, total equities and securities maturities and payment) divided by investment commitments (loan commitments, 10% of certificates of deposit maturing within 30 days and 5% of non-maturing deposits). Our key quarterly test is the Primary Liquidity ratio, which we calculate as total liquid assets (cash and due from banks, federal funds sold and all securities that are not pledged to secure borrowing) as a percentage of total assets.

We seek to maintain a minimum monthly liquidity ratio of 4% to 6% of assets, and a minimum quarterly Primary Liquidity ratio of 15%. At March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2024, we were in compliance with both of these guidelines.

Our cash flows are comprised of three primary classifications: cash flows from operating activities, investing activities, and financing activities. Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities was \$571,000 and \$447,000 for the nine months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Net cash used by investing activities, which consists primarily of disbursements for loan originations and the purchase of investment securities, offset by principal collections on loans and proceeds from maturing securities and pay downs on securities, was \$47.5 million and \$75.1 million for the nine months



ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Net cash provided by financing activities was \$69.4 million and \$64.0 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

We are committed to maintaining a strong liquidity position. We monitor our liquidity position on a daily basis. We anticipate that we will have sufficient funds to meet our current funding commitments based on our current strategy to increase loans with an increase in core deposits and the continued use of Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston advances, as needed.

At March 31, 2025, Winchester Savings Bank exceeded its applicable regulatory capital requirement, and was considered "well capitalized" under regulatory guidelines.

The net proceeds from the offering will significantly increase our liquidity and capital resources. Over time, the initial level of liquidity will be reduced as net offering proceeds are used for general corporate purposes, including funding loans. Our financial condition and results of operations will be enhanced by the net proceeds from the offering, which will increase our net interest-earning assets and net interest income. However, due to the increase in equity resulting from the net proceeds, as well as other factors associated with the offering, our return on equity will be lower immediately following the offering.

### **Recent Accounting Pronouncements**

There are no recent accounting pronouncements issued, but not yet adopted, that are expected to have a significant impact on our financial statements. As an emerging growth company, we have elected to use the extended transition period to delay the adoption of new or re-issued accounting pronouncements applicable to public companies until such pronouncements are applicable to private companies.

#### **Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices**

The financial statements and related data presented herein have been prepared in accordance with GAAP, which requires the measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars without considering changes in the relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. The primary impact of inflation on our operations is reflected in increased operating costs. Unlike most industrial companies, virtually all of the assets and liabilities of a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates, generally, have a more significant impact on a financial institution's performance than does inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or to the same extent as the prices of goods and services.

#### Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

See Item 2, above.

#### Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we have evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by the quarterly report. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and forms.

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.

### PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

### Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

We are not involved in any pending legal proceedings as a plaintiff or defendant other than routine legal proceedings occurring in the ordinary course of business, and at March 31, 2025, we were not involved in any legal proceedings, the outcome of which would be material to our financial condition or results of operations.

### Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Not applicable, as the Registrant is a smaller reporting company.

### Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

- a) There were no sales of unregistered securities during the period covered by this Report.
- b) Not applicable.
- c) There were no issuer repurchases of securities during the period covered by this Report.

### Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

Not applicable.

### Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

### Item 5. Other Information.

None.

### Item 6. Exhibits.

Furnish the exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K (§ 229.601 of this chapter).

Exhibit Number	Description
31.1*	Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted
	Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2*	Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted
	Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1*	Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
	<u>of 2002.</u>
32.2*	Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
	<u>of 2002.</u>
101.INS	Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because XBRL tags are embedded within
	the Inline XBRL document.
101.SCH	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema With Embedded Linkbase Documents
104	Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)
	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema With Embedded Linkbase Documents

\* Filed herewith.

### SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

	Winch	Winchester Bancorp, Inc			
Date: May 12, 2025	By:	/s/ John A. Carroll			
		John A. Carroll			
		President and Chief Executive Officer			
Date: May 12, 2025	By:	/s/ Elda Heller			
		Elda Heller			
		Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer			

### CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John A Carroll, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this Form 10-Q of Winchester Bancorp, Inc. (the "registrant");
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
  - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
  - (b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
  - (c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
  - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
  - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 12, 2025

By: /s/ John A. Carroll

John A. Carroll President and Chief Executive Officer

### CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Elda Heller, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this Form 10-Q of Winchester Bancorp, Inc. (the "registrant");
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
  - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
  - (b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
  - (c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
  - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
  - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 12, 2025

By: \_\_\_\_\_/s/ Elda Heller

Elda Heller Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

### CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Winchester Bancorp, Inc (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2025 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

Date: May 12, 2025

By: /s/ John A. Carroll

John A. Carroll President and Chief Executive Officer

### CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Winchester Bancorp, Inc (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2025 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

Date: May 12, 2025

By: \_\_\_\_\_/s/ Elda Heller

Elda Heller Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer